

Clearinghouse Rule 09-057

**State of Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds
Employee Trust Fund Board
Wisconsin Retirement Board
Teachers Retirement Board
Group Insurance Board
Deferred Compensation Board**

The Wisconsin department of employee trust funds proposes an order to renumber and amend ETF 10.01 (9); to amend ETF 10.12 (1) (b) and (d), and (2) (a), (b) and (e), 10.25 (intro.), (1) (a) and (b), (2), (3) (intro.), (b) and (c) and (d), and (4), 10.30 (4) (a) and (b), (5) (a) 1., 2., 3. b., and (f), 10.70 (4), 10.70 (5) (b) 1., ETF 11.16 (2) (a), ETF 20.03 (2) (intro.), 20.04 (2) (b) to (g), 20.04 (4), 20.07 (6), 20.17 (4) (d) 2. intro. and g., 20.18 (9), 20.23 (2), 20.25 (intro.), (1) (a) and (2), 20.30, ETF 52.04 (2), ETF 60.53 (1) (c), 60.60 (2) (h), and 60.60 (8); and to create ETF 10.01 (3o) and 10.01 (3r), ETF 20.025, ETF 20.03 (2) (bm) and 20.03 (4), ETF 20.045, ETF 20.21, ETF 20.37 (2), and ETF 20.39, relating to technical and minor substantive changes in existing ETF administrative rules.

Text of Proposed Rule

SECTION 1. ETF 10.01 (3o) is created to read:

ETF 10.01 (3o) "Minimum retirement age" means the earliest age at which a person may qualify to receive a regular, non-disability annuity or a lump sum payment in lieu of an annuity from the Wisconsin retirement system.

Note: The term "minimum retirement age" currently is not used in ch. 40, Stats. or ETF administrative rules. The term is defined in this rule to be consistent with s. 40.23 (1) (a) (intro.), Stats., which describes the earliest age at which a retirement annuity may be taken.

SECTION 2. ETF 10.01 (3r) is created to read:

ETF 10.01 (3r) "Per stirpes" as used in s. 40.02 (8) means the modified per stirpes distribution in s. 854.04 (2), Stats.

Note: This rule provides for a uniform interpretation of s. s. 40.02 (8) as that statute pertains to the various programs administered by the department of employee trust funds. Under this rule, if a deceased

participant is survived only by the two children of one deceased child, the grandchildren will share the death benefit equally rather than what could occur under an ordinary per stirpes distribution.

SECTION 3. ETF 10.01 (9) is renumbered ETF 10.01 (6m) and as renumbered is amended to read:

ETF 10.01 (6m) ~~“Widow or widower~~Surviving spouse” means the spouse to whom the deceased was married at the time of death. For purposes of determining a beneficiary under s. 40.02 (8) (a) 2., Stats., a judgment, order or decree of divorce, legal separation or ~~an~~ annulment of the marriage terminates the marital relationship, ~~but a legal separation does not, unless and until converted to a divorce.~~

Note: This rule deletes the obsolete terms “widow or widower”, which was deleted from s. 40.08 (8) (a) 2., Stats., by 2007 Wis. Act 131 and replaced by the term “surviving spouse.” The definition is renumbered to preserve the alphabetical listing of definitions. The Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) has allowed courts to order the division of WRS benefits in the property division associated with a legal separation because a legal separation is a termination of the marriage, at least for property division purposes. This treatment of the beneficiary definition is in conformity with that interpretation.

SECTION 4. ETF 10.12 (1) (b) and (d) and (2) (a) (b) and (e) are amended to read:

ETF 10.12 (1) (b) The separate retirement system may designate any portion of its deposit for investment in the variable retirement investment trust. Deposits shall be invested in the fixed core retirement trust unless otherwise designated.

ETF 10.12 (1) (d) Deposits in the fixed core and variable retirement investment trusts shall be accepted on the last working day of the month only, even if actually received earlier. Each investment shall be effective the last day of the month for purposes of investment valuation.

ETF 10.12 (2) (a) The current market values of the fixed core and variable retirement investment trusts shall be determined as of the close of the last calendar day of the month.

ETF 10.12 (2) (b) The market gain or loss of the fixed core and variable retirement investment trusts shall each be determined for the month, net of administrative and investment costs.

ETF 10.12 (2) (e) The fixed core or variable retirement investment trust’s average daily net assets available for investment during the month shall

be calculated as the sum of its daily beginning asset balances divided by the number of calendar days in the month.

Note: This rule replaces the term “fixed”, when referring to the retirement investment trust, with the term “core” when referring to that retirement investment trust. 2005 Wis. Act 153 changed the name of the Fixed Fund to the Core Fund. This rule replaces the term “fixed” with the term “core” wherever it appears in the ETF administrative rules, specifically in ss. ETF 10.12 (1) (b) and (d) and (2) (a) (b) and (e); 10.25 (intro.), (1) (a) and (b), (2), (3) (intro.), (b), (c) and (d) and (4); 10.30 (4) (a) and (b), (5) (a) 1., 2., 3. b., and (f); 11.16 (2) (a); 20.23 (2); and 20.25 (intro.), (1) (a) and (2).

SECTION 5. ETF 10.25 (intro.), (1) (a) and (b), (2), (3) (intro.), (b), (c) and (d) and (4) are amended to read:

ETF 10.25 Fixed Core retirement investment trust participation in the variable retirement investment trust. The fixed core retirement investment trust may invest in the variable retirement investment trust subject to the following:

ETF 10.25 (1) (a) All investments in common and preferred stock by the fixed core retirement investment trust and the variable retirement investment trust shall be made through the combined stock fund account.

ETF 10.25 (1) (b) The trusts shall transfer funds to be invested in common and preferred stocks to the combined stock fund account. In exchange, the fixed core retirement investment trust and variable retirement investment trust shall receive shares in the combined stock fund.

ETF 10.25 (2) INVESTMENT OF COMBINED STOCKS. All funds received in the combined stock fund from the fixed core retirement investment trust and the variable retirement investment trust shall be used to invest in common or preferred stocks or the state investment fund.

ETF 10.25 (3) EARNINGS DISTRIBUTIONS. Earnings shall be distributed from the combined stock fund to the fixed core retirement investment trust and the variable retirement investment trust according to the following:

ETF 10.25 (3) (b) As of the last day of each month the combined stock fund shall distribute to the fixed core retirement investment trust and the variable retirement investment trust all income recorded for that month including interest received, dividends received, gain or loss realized on the sale of investments and the unrealized gain or loss recognized on the adjustment of investment book value to market value. Following these distributions the unit value of shares in the combined stock fund shall be one dollar.

ETF 10.25 (3) (c) For any month, the distribution of income between the [fixed core](#) retirement investment trust and the variable retirement investment trust shall be based on the ratio of the relative number of combined stock fund shares held by each trust as of the first day of that month to the total number of combined stock fund shares outstanding.

ETF 10.25 (3) (d) Monthly distributions from the combined stock fund to the [fixed core](#) retirement investment trust resulting from gains or losses realized on the sale of investments or unrealized appraisal gains or losses shall be transferred to the transaction amortization account. Distributions resulting from all other sources shall be recognized as current income to the [fixed core](#) retirement investment trust in the month of distribution.

ETF 10.25 (4) WITHDRAWALS. The [fixed core](#) retirement investment trust or the variable retirement investment trust may withdraw funds from the combined stock fund as of the first day of any month. The withdrawal shall be accomplished by selling combined stock fund shares to the combined stock fund. Withdrawals made after the first day of any month shall be deemed to have been made on the first day of that month for purposes of distributing income at the end of that month.

SECTION 6. ETF 10.30 (4) (a) and (b), (5) (a) 1., 2., 3. b., and (f) are amended to read:

ETF 10.30 (4) RETROACTIVE CONTRIBUTIONS. (a) Retroactive interest credited to contributions for late-paid earnings shall be credited at the [fixed core](#) effective rates as provided in s. 40.06 (5), Stats.

ETF 10.30 (4) (b) Late-paid and other retroactive contributions shall be deposited in the [fixed core](#) and variable trust accounts according to the participant's variable participation status at the time the contributions are deposited, regardless of the participant's variable participation status in the annual earnings period to which the contributions may be attributed for other purposes.

ETF 10.30 (5) TERMINATING PARTICIPATION IN THE VARIABLE DIVISION. (a) A participant may elect to terminate participation in the variable division and transfer the participant's variable division contributions to the [fixed core](#) division on one of the following bases:

ETF 10.30 (5) (a) 1. For future contributions only: Effective as of the December 31 after the date on which the department receives an election to terminate participation in the variable division, all future contributions shall be deposited in the [fixed core](#) division.

ETF 10.30 (5) (a) 2. An unconditional basis: Effective as of the December 31 after the date on which the department receives an election to terminate participation in the variable division, all future contributions shall be deposited in the fixed core division and all variable contributions and accrued gain or loss shall be transferred to the fixed core division.

ETF 10.30 (5) (a) 3. b. For all accounts from which an annuity is not being paid, effective on the first January 1 after the department receives the election when the condition under s. 40.04 (7) (a) 2., Stats., is satisfied. As of the first January 1 after the Department receives the election, all future contributions shall be deposited in the fixed core division. As of the first January 1 when the condition under s. 40.04 (7) (a) 2., Stats., is satisfied, all variable contributions and accrued gain or loss shall be transferred to the fixed core division.

ETF 10.30 (5) (f) For an account or annuity that includes additional contribution, when an election to terminate participation in the variable division pursuant to s. 40.04 (7) (a) 1. or 2., Stats., is made by an alternate payee, beneficiary, named survivor, or participant as defined in s. 40.02 (2m), (8), (41r) and (45), Stats., the determination of whether the variable contributions and accrued gain or loss shall be transferred to the fixed core division shall be based on an evaluation of the combined total of the required and additional contributions and shall be effective as prescribed in this section.

SECTION 7. ETF 10.70 (4) is amended to read:

ETF 10.70 (4) In case of death, disabling injury or disease, disclosure of individual personal information shall be made only to:

- (a) the legal representative of the individual whose record is the subject of inquiry.
- ~~(a)(b)~~ a proper the beneficiary of the deceased under s. 40.02 (8) as identified by the department.
- (c) or the duly authorized representative of the beneficiary identified in (b).
- ~~(b)(d)~~ or to the legal representative of the individual or the deceased individual's estate whose record is the subject of inquiry.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", Hanging: 0.74"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1"

Note: The definition of "beneficiary" was affected by 2007 Wis. Act 131. The existing administrative rules using that term were reviewed in order to ensure that the use of the term remained logical, correct and consistent with the new definition. While conducting that review, the department located three provisions that needed to be amended: ss. ETF 10.70 (4), 10.70 (5) (b) 1. and 20.04 (2). This rule amends the current rule allowing

disclosure of confidential personal information in case of death, disabling injury or disease, to clarify that disclosure to a beneficiary may be made only after the participant has died, since only then can the actual beneficiary be determined. The amendment will also help safeguard the confidential information of living participants.

SECTION 8. ETF 10.70 (5) (b) 1. is amended to read:

ETF 10.70 (5) (b) 1. Upon request, to the personal representative of the individual's estate, to ~~a-the~~ beneficiary of the individual under s. 40.02 (8) as identified by the department, or to the duly authorized representative of the personal ~~representative's representative~~ or the beneficiary's duly authorized representative that beneficiary;

Note: The definition of "beneficiary" was affected by 2007 Wis. Act 131. The existing administrative rules using that term were reviewed in order to ensure that the use of the term remained logical, correct and consistent with the new definition. While conducting that review, the department located three provisions that needed to be amended: ss. ETF 10.70 (4), 10.70 (5) (b) 1. and 20.04 (2).

This rule amends the current rule allowing disclosure of a deceased individual's confidential personal information to clarify that the persons who may request that information are the personal representative of the estate, the decedent's beneficiary or a duly authorized representative of either of them.

SECTION 9. ETF 11.16 (2) (a) is amended to read:

ETF 11.16 (2) (a) Treat the overpayment as a separate account, participating in the variable and fixed core rate trusts to the same extent as the participant, unless another treatment is expressly provided by ch. 40, Stats.

SECTION 10. ETF 20.025 is created to read:

ETF 20.025 **Minimum retirement age.** (1) REGULAR RETIREMENT ANNUITIES AND LUMP SUMS IN LIEU OF AN ANNUITY. The earliest age at which a person may qualify to receive an annuity under s. 40.23 or 40.24, Stats., or a lump sum in lieu of an annuity under s. 40.25 (1), Stats., is the minimum retirement age.

(2) SEPARATION BENEFITS. An application for a lump sum benefit under s. 40.25 (2), Stats., must be received by the department before the applicant has reached minimum retirement age.

Note: The term "minimum retirement age" currently is not used in ch. 40, Stats. or ETF administrative rules., except for ss. ETF 10.01 (3o) and

20.025 as proposed in this rule. The term is defined in this rule to be consistent with s. 40.23 (1) (a) (intro.), Stats., which is implicitly referenced by s. 40.25 (1) (a), Stats., and with s. 40.25 (2), Stats.

SECTION 11. ETF 20.03 (2) (intro.) is amended to read:

ETF 20.03 (2) For purposes of determining maximum benefits under s. 40.23 (2), Stats., and ~~integrated~~~~accelerated~~ benefits under s. 40.24 (4), Stats., except as provided to the contrary in s. ETF 20.35 (3) (c) 2., the estimated OASDHI benefit shall be based on the following:

Note: 2007 Wis. Act 131 revised s. 40.24 (1) (e), Stats., for annuities effective after July 1, 2008 to remove the alternative provision terminating the temporary annuity portion of the benefit at death and thereby made the temporary annuity an annuity certain payable until the annuitant would have reached age 62. Once called “Social Security Integrated” or “integrated” annuities, these two-part annuity options are now known as accelerated annuity options. This rule updates the last remaining reference in the administrative rules to an “integrated” annuity benefit.

SECTION 12. ETF 20.03 (2) (bm) is created to read:

ETF 20.03 (2) (bm) With respect to accelerated annuity options under s. 40.24 (1) (e), Stats., or s. ETF 20.04 (3), that become effective on or after July 1, 2008, the temporary annuity portion is payable in all cases until the annuitant reaches, or would have reached, age 62, without regard for an earlier date of death. The actuary shall make all tables, other assumptions and calculations relevant to the accelerated annuity benefit accordingly.

Note: 2007 Wis. Act 131 revised s. 40.24 (1) (e), Stats., for annuities effective after July 1, 2008 to remove the alternative provision terminating the temporary annuity portion of the benefit at death and thereby made the temporary annuity an annuity certain payable until the annuitant would have reached age 62. This rule requires the actuary’s assumptions, tables and calculations to take into account that the temporary portion of future accelerated annuity benefits will be an annuity certain.

SECTION 13. ETF 20.03 (4) is created to read:

ETF 20.03 (4) Calculating final average earnings for state elected officials. (a) When the earnings of a state elected official whose final average earnings are subject to s. 40.02 (33) (b) 1. or 2., are paid on a payroll schedule other than monthly, the final average earnings used to calculate benefits under s. 40.23, s. 40.63 and s. 40.73 (c), Stats., shall be calculated by multiplying the participant’s hourly rate of pay at the time of

termination of employment from state elected official service by 2,080, then dividing the result by 12.

(b) The final average earnings calculated under sub. (1) shall not be used to calculate benefits based on creditable service granted in any category of employment other than that as a state elected official.

Note: This rule codifies the department's long-standing practice for calculating the final average earnings for state elected officials and ensures the practice is consistent for calculating retirement annuities, disability annuities, and death benefits.

SECTION 14. ETF 20.04 (2) (b) to (g) are amended to read:

ETF 20.04 (2) (b) The participant may ~~name designate~~ a ~~secondary~~ beneficiary or beneficiaries as provided in s. 40.02 (8) (a) 1. to receive the balance of payments due in the event of the death of both the participant and named survivor before 180 monthly payments have been made. The participant may change the designation of the beneficiary.

ETF 20.04 (2) (c) ~~The participant, or in the event of the death of the participant, the~~ A named survivor or beneficiary receiving a deceased participant's annuity payments under this subsection, may designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries as provided in s. 40.08 (a) 1. and thereafter at any time change ~~the his or her~~ designation of the ~~secondary~~ beneficiary of any remaining guaranteed monthly payments.

ETF 20.04 (2) (d) In the event of the death of the named survivor who is receiving continued benefits after the death of the participant, but prior to payment of 180 monthly benefits, the remainder of the 180 monthly payments shall continue to the ~~secondary~~ named survivor's designated beneficiary, or in the absence of a ~~secondary~~ designated beneficiary or the death of ~~the secondary beneficiary~~ all the named survivor's designated beneficiaries prior to the death of the named survivor, payment shall be made under the named survivor's standard sequence as set forth in s. 40.02 (8) (a) 2., Stats.

ETF 20.04 (2) (e) In the event of the death of the named survivor prior to the death of the participant, the remainder of the 180 monthly payments shall continue to the ~~secondary~~ participant's designated beneficiary, or in the absence of a ~~secondary~~ beneficiary designation or the death of all the secondary beneficiary ~~designated beneficiaries~~ prior to the death of the participant, payment shall be made under the participant's standard sequence as set forth in s. 40.02 (8) (a) 2., Stats.

ETF 20.04 (2) (f) In the event of the death of the ~~secondary~~ beneficiary after becoming entitled to receive monthly payments but before receipt of the remainder of the guaranteed 180 monthly payments, the then present value of the annuity shall be paid, in lieu of the continuation of monthly payments, pursuant to s. 40.73 (2) (b) 3., Stats., as a death benefit to the ~~secondary~~ beneficiary's ~~named designated~~ beneficiary, or in the absence of a beneficiary designation or the death of all the ~~secondary~~ beneficiary's ~~named beneficiary designated beneficiaries~~ prior to the death of the ~~secondary~~ beneficiary, the then present value of the annuity shall be paid under the ~~secondary~~ beneficiary's standard sequence as set forth in s. 40.02 (8) (a) 2., Stats.

ETF 20.04 (2) (g) In the event of the death of both the named survivor and ~~secondary beneficiary~~ all the participant's designated beneficiaries prior to being entitled to receive benefits, the remaining monthly payments shall continue pursuant to the participant's standard sequence as set forth under s. 40.02 (8) (a) 2., Stats., if the participant's death occurs before 180 monthly payments have been made.

Note: The definition of "beneficiary" was affected by 2007 Wis. Act 131. The term "named survivor" was first used and defined by 1997 Act 110, and replaced the term "beneficiary" in some cases. In reviewing the existing administrative rules using the term, to make sure the usage remained logical, correct and consistent with the new definition, the department found three provisions that needed amendment, ss. ETF 10.70 (4), 10.70 (5) (b) 1. and 20.04 (2). This rule amends the current rule describing the joint-and-surviving annuity option with 180-payment guarantee to use the term "beneficiary" correctly.

SECTION 15. ETF 20.04 (4) is amended to read:

ETF 20.04 (4) ~~If the participant's or alternate payee's age on the birthday which occurs during the year that the annuity begins is 72 or more, a~~ A life annuity with a number of guaranteed payments equal to the number of full calendar months in the life expectancy for that age of the annuitant as determined under Table V of 26 CFR 1.72-9 as in effect on January 1, 1997 the date when the annuity begins.

Note: This rule concerns the optional forms of an annuity and updates the existing rule to better reflect ongoing changes in federal regulations and to more clearly state that the number of guaranteed payments is to equal the number of full calendar months in the annuitant's life expectancy.

SECTION 16. ETF 20.045 is created to read:

ETF 20.045 Changes to optional form of payment. (1) Changing the form of payment from a lump sum payment under s. 40.25 (1) or (4), or s. 40.73 (1) (a), Stats., to an annuity under s. 40.24 (1) or s. 40.73 (3), Stats., or from an annuity to a lump sum payment, is subject to the option change deadline specified in s. 40.24 (4), Stats.

(2) (a) If a participant, alternate payee or beneficiary has made a timely request under sub. (1) to change from a lump sum payment to a monthly annuity, the effective date of the annuity shall be determined based on the original date on which the department received the original application for benefits.

(b) If the department receives a timely payment option change request after the lump sum payment has already been issued, or receives it too late to prevent the payment from being issued, the applicant must return the payment in full within 30 calendar days after the date on which the department received the option change request. If the lump sum payment is not returned within the 30-day period, the option change request is null and void.

(c) The department shall not commence making annuity payments before the department has received the returned lump sum payment.

(3) If a participant, alternate payee or beneficiary has made a timely request under sub. (1) to change from a monthly annuity to a lump sum payment after one or more monthly payments have been issued, or receives the option change request too late to prevent a monthly payment from being issued, the amount of the annuity payments that would have been paid under the terminated annuity if the annuity had been a straight life annuity shall be deducted from the lump sum payment that would otherwise have been payable.

Note: This rule codifies the deadline for making a change to an optional form of payment is 60 days after the date on which the first annuity check is issued or funds are otherwise transferred. If the request for a payment option change is received by the department too late to prevent the lump sum payment, the applicant has 30 calendar days from the date of the request to return the payment in full.

SECTION 17. ETF 20.07 (6) is amended to read:

ETF 20.07 (6) If [the](#) participant or alternate payee submits a waiver of a lump sum benefit under s. 40.08 (3), Stats., and the department receives it on or before the deadline specified in s. ETF 20.20 (3) or (4), the

department shall defer the automatic distribution during the waiting period before the waiver effective date. ~~The waiver effective date may not be later than the first day of the second month which begins after the deadline to request cancellation of lump sum benefits specified in s. ETF 20.20 (3) or (4).~~ The department shall not defer automatic distribution of monthly annuity benefits if a waiver is filed, but shall continue to make monthly payments until the waiver takes effect.

Note: This rule amends ss. ETF 20.07 (6) and 60.53 (1) (c) to conform to the new effective date for waivers in s. 40.08 (3), Stats., as affected by 2007 Wis. Act 131.

SECTION 18. ETF 20.17 (4) (d) 2. intro. and g. is amended to read:

ETF 20.17 (4) (d) 2. intro. The actuary shall devise the method for calculating the cost to purchase other governmental service. The actuary's calculation shall use the same economic and actuarial assumptions used in the actuary's valuations of the Wisconsin retirement system. The actuary shall establish the factors necessary to determine the actuarial value to each applicant of the purchased service credit. Those factors ~~shall~~ may include, without limitation:

ETF 20.17 (4) (d) 2. g. The participant's years of creditable service, including all previously purchased service credit, by employment category and by pre-2000 and post-1999 service.

Note: This amendment to the existing rule provides clarification that the actuary may include the eight factors specified in the rule when determining the actuarial value of the purchased service credit along with other relevant factors. In addition, the rule corrects a typo by adding the word "service" to the applicable section.

SECTION 19. ETF 20.18 (9) is amended to read:

ETF 20.18 (9) Nothing in this section shall prohibit the department from refunding payments which are in excess of the limits on contributions to qualified retirement plans established under section 415 of the internal revenue code, ~~as defined in s. 71.01 (6), Stats.,~~ and reducing the creditable service granted accordingly.

Note: This rule amends ss. ETF 20.18 (9), 60.60 (2) (h) and 60.60 (8) to conform to the definition of "internal revenue code" in s. 40.02 (39m), Stats., added by 2007 Wis. Act 131 by deleting the former reference to s. 71.01 (6), Stats. Section ETF 10.01 (intro.) already provides that definitions in s. 40.02, Stats., apply throughout all ETF chapters.

SECTION 20. ETF 20.21 is created to read:

ETF 20.21 Changing annuity effective dates. An annuity effective date shall not be changed after the effective date of the annuity unless the applicant's written request for the change is received by the department within 60 days after the date on which the first annuity check, share draft or other draft is issued or funds are otherwise transferred.

Note: This rule codifies the department's use of a deadline pertaining to annuity effective date changes and makes that deadline consistent with the deadline for annuity option changes in s. 40.24 (4), Stats.

SECTION 21. ETF 20.23 (2) is amended to read:

ETF 20.23 (2) Pursuant to s. 40.03 (1) (a), Stats., the monthly amount of a recomputed annuity in the normal form under s. 40.26 (3), Stats., excluding any portion which on either the original or recomputed annuity was a variable annuity, shall not be less than the monthly amount of the original **fixed core** annuity in the normal form increased by any dividends granted prior to termination of the original annuity.

SECTION 22. ETF 20.25 (intro.), (1) (a) and (2) are amended to read:

ETF 20.25 Fixed Core and variable annuity changes. Annuity changes shall be made as follows:

ETF 20.25 (1) (a) Except as otherwise provided in par. (b), a **fixed core** annuity dividend, as recommended by the actuary and approved by the chair of the employee trust funds board and the department's secretary, shall be distributed based on each December 31 valuation as specified in s. 40.27 (2), Stats. The dividend shall be effective on the April 1 following the valuation date and shall apply to **fixed core** annuities effective on or prior to the date of the valuation. As authorized under s. 40.27 (2) (b), Stats., different percentages shall be determined for annuities effective for less than a full year on the valuation date. The percentages shall be determined by multiplying the number of full months the annuity was in force times the percentage change applicable to annuities effective for the full year, dividing the result by 12 and rounding the answer to the nearest tenth of a percent. No increase shall be applied to any annuity for which the resulting increase would be less than one tenth of a percent.

ETF 20.25 (2) Variable annuity changes, as recommended by the actuary and approved by the secretary, shall be made based on each December 31 valuation as specified in s. 40.28 (2), Stats. The changes shall be effective on the April 1 following the valuation and shall apply to variable

annuities effective on or prior to the date of the valuation, regardless of whether the annuity becomes a ~~fixed core~~ annuity in the following year.

SECTION 23. ETF 20.30 is amended to read:

ETF 20.30 Pursuant to s. 40.08 (7) (c), Stats., if an annuity under s. 40.23, 40.24, 40.63, or 40.73, Stats., is underpaid by more than \$2 ~~per in a~~ month, and if ~~the that~~ underpayment ~~continues is uncorrected~~ for 12 or more ~~monthly payments months, then~~ the payment to the annuitant to correct the underpayment shall include interest ~~equal to at~~ 0.4% ~~of the cumulative underpayment amount multiplied by the number of monthly payments in which the annuity was underpaid per month for each full month between the date the underpayment occurred and the date the retroactive correction is paid.~~ The interest due shall be calculated separately for each month's underpaid amount. For purposes of this section, "full month" means the period from any date in a month to the corresponding date in the next month, or to the end of the month if there is no corresponding date.

Note: This rule changes the calculation of interest on underpayments to conform to s. 40.08 (7) (c), Stats., and pay monthly interest on a particular month's underpayment until it is corrected.

SECTION 24. ETF 20.37 (2) is created to read:

ETF 20.37 (2) For purposes of applying s. 40.74 (6), Wis. Stats., when determining beneficiaries of a death benefit, reasonable efforts to locate a potential beneficiary of a participant shall consist of the following actions:

1. Search on the department's internal information technology systems for information regarding the participant and any potential beneficiary.
2. Utilize an appropriate Internet program for locating people.
3. Contact the person (s) who may be a beneficiary, if the department learns the name of such a person (s).
4. Contact the employer of the person (s) who may be a beneficiary, if the department learns the name of such an employer.
5. Publish the participant's name in the official state newspaper and on the department's website to solicit information about beneficiaries.

Note: 2007 Wisconsin Act 131 created s. 40.74 (6), Stats. This provision allows the department, when determining beneficiaries of a death benefit, to presume that a beneficiary who cannot be located within 12 months actually died before the participant. The language in the statute is permissive. This rule establishes what will be considered to be reasonable efforts by the department to locate the potential beneficiary.

SECTION 25. ETF 20.39 is created to read:

ETF 20.39 Delinquent state tax obligations. (1) PAYMENTS SUBJECT TO ATTACHMENT. As provided by s. 40.08 (1r), Stats., in order to satisfy delinquent tax obligation of a person, the Wisconsin department of revenue may attach any one of the following types of payment being made by the Wisconsin retirement system to that person:

- (a) Monthly payments of a regular annuity under s. 40.23 or 40.24, Stats.
- (b) Monthly payments of a disability annuity under s. 40.63, Stats.
- (c) The continued monthly annuity payments of a joint-and-survivor annuity that are paid to a named survivor after the death of the annuitant, regardless of whether the annuity is a regular annuity under s. 40.23 or 40.24, Stats., or a disability annuity under s. 40.63, Stats.
- (d) Monthly payments of an annuity from the annuitant's additional contributions.
- (e) A lump sum paid in lieu of an annuity under s. 40.25, Stats., regardless of whether the payment is required or is made at the request of the participant.
- (f) A lump sum separation benefit paid under s. 40.25 (2), Stats..

(2) LIMITATIONS AND WRS PAYMENTS NOT SUBJECT TO ATTACHMENT.

(a) Attachment under s. 40.08 (1r) and this section applies only to benefits in pay status. The department of revenue may not compel the payment of benefits for which a person has not applied or apply for benefits on behalf of any person.

(b) Section 40.08 (1r), Stats., and sub. (1) do not apply to lump sum payments of additional contributions made under s. 40.25 (4), Stats., or to death benefits paid under s. 40.73, Stats., including but not limited to remaining guaranteed monthly annuity payments, regardless of whether the death benefits are paid in the form of an annuity.

(3) NOTICE AND CONTINUED WITHHOLDING FROM ANNUITIES. (a) The department shall transmit amounts withheld under s. 40.08 (1r) to the department of revenue and notify the payee of the amount withheld.

- (b) The withholding from annuity payments subject to sub. (1) shall continue until the earlier of the following:
 - 1. The department has withheld the total amount the department of revenue identified as attached to satisfy a delinquent tax obligation.

2. The department is instructed otherwise by the department of revenue or a court of competent jurisdiction.

Note: 2007 Wis. Act 131 moved the authorization for the department of revenue to attach benefits for delinquent state tax obligations from s. 40.08 (1), Stats., into a new s. 40.08 (1r), Stats. The authorization was also amended to limit the authority of the department of revenue to attaching only lump sum payments and annuities paid under ss. 40.23, 40.24, 40.25 (1) or (2), or 40.63, Stats. This rule therefore states that a tax attachment does apply to joint-and-survivor annuities being paid to a named survivor but does not apply to certain lump sum benefits and death benefits payable under statutes not cited in the new s. 40.08 (1r), Stats. The rule would also state that the attachment of an annuity will result in continued monthly withholding until the entire delinquent tax amount has been withheld, or the department is instructed to stop withholding. The rule also provides that the statutory authority to attach a payment does not confer any right for the department of revenue to ask the department of employee trust funds to pay out a benefit for which the person has not applied.

SECTION 26. ETF 52.04 (2) is amended to read:

ETF 52.04 (2). The department may request any income or benefit information, or any information concerning a person's marital status, which it considers to be necessary to determine the amount of each monthly benefit payable under s. 40.65, Stats., and its effective date. The department ~~shall~~ may require a participant receiving duty disability benefits to submit a certified copy of his or her ~~most recent~~ state or federal income tax return annually.

Note: This rule amends s. ETF 52.04 (2) to conform to the treatment of s. 40.65 (3) by 2007 Wis. Act 131 by removing the mandate for the department to obtain a certified copy of each duty disability recipient's tax return each year and treating a failure to provide a tax return, if requested, in the same manner as other refusals to provide requested information.

SECTION 27. ETF 60.53 (1) (c) is amended to read:

ETF 60.53 (1) (c) If the beneficiary submits a waiver of a lump sum benefit under s. 40.74 (2), Stats., and the department receives it on or before the deadline specified in s. ETF 60.51 (2), the department shall defer automatic distribution of the benefit during the waiting period before the waiver effective date. ~~The waiver effective date may not be later than the first day of the second month which begins after the deadline specified in s. ETF 60.51 (2).~~ Any new beneficiary who becomes eligible for a continuation of the monthly payments as a result of a waiver shall be

granted the period specified in sub. (1) to apply for continuation of the monthly payments.

Note: This rule amends ss. ETF 20.07 (6) and 60.53 (1) (c) to conform to the new effective date for waivers in s. 40.08 (3), Stats., as affected by 2007 Wis. Act 131.

SECTION 28. ETF 60.60 (2) (h) is amended to read:

ETF 60.60 (2) (h) "Long-term care insurance" means insurance which is provided under s. 40.55, Stats., and which qualifies as an accident and health plan under section 106 of the internal revenue code ~~as defined in s. 71.01 (6), Stats.~~

Note: This rule amends ss. ETF 20.18 (9), 60.60 (2) (h) and 60.60 (8) to conform to the definition of "internal revenue code" in s. 40.02 (39m), Stats., added by 2007 Wis. Act 131 by deleting the former reference to s. 71.01 (6), Stats. Section ETF 10.01 (intro.) already provides that definitions in s. 40.02, Stats., apply throughout all ETF chapters.

SECTION 29. ETF 60.60 (8) (a) is amended to read:

ETF 60.60 (8) (a) The moneys credited to the conversion account may only be used to provide health or long-term care insurance premiums or death benefits. The insured may not receive the balance in the conversion account as a living benefit or in any form which would be included in the insured's gross income under applicable provisions of the internal revenue code ~~as defined in s. 71.01 (6), Stats., or of the temporary or permanent federal regulations.~~

Note: This rule amends ss. ETF 20.18 (9), 60.60 (2) (h) and 60.60 (8) to conform to the definition of "internal revenue code" in s. 40.02 (39m), Stats., added by 2007 Wis. Act 131 by deleting the former reference to s. 71.01 (6), Stats. Section ETF 10.01 (intro.) already provides that definitions in s. 40.02, Stats., apply throughout all ETF chapters.